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(~E~f\ DORTON 
DEAN DORTON ALLEN FORD, PLLC 

Report of Independent Auditors 

Member of the Board of Regents and 
Mr. Geoffrey S. Mearns, President 
Northern Kentucky University 
Highland Heights, Kentucky 

Secretary of Finance and 
Administration Cabinet of the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely 
presented component unit of Northern Kentucky University (the University), as of and for the years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 

presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial s tatements. 
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Northern Kentucky University 
Report of Independent Auditors, continued 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audi t 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of Northern 
Kentucky University as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows 
thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note lq to the financial statements, the 2013 financial statements have been restated due to the 
adoption of new accounting guidance related to accounting for debt issuance costs and to correct a misstatement. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementan; Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis on pages 4-11 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial s tatements that collectively 
comprise Northern Kentucky University's basic financial statements. The schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards, as 
required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Pro.fit 
Organizations are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial s tatements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information d irectly to the underlying accounting and other 
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Northern Kentucky University 

Report of Independent Auditors, continued 

records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 

our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemmmt- A11diti11g Standards 

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 1, 2014 on our 

consideration of Northern Kentucky University's internal control over financia l reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting 

or on complianc~. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the University's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

October 1, 2014 

Lexing ton, Kentucky 
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Northern Kentucky University and Affiliate 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

North~rn Kentucky U~iversity's (the University~ Management Discussion and Analysis of its financial condition provides an 
overview of the financial performance of the Umvers1ty for the year ended June 30, 2014, with selected comparative information for 
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with 
the accompanying financial statements and notes. 

As a public comprehen~ive university lo_ca!ed in a major metropolitan area, Northern Kentucky University delivers innovative, 
learner-centered ~ducatJ~n and e1~gages 1~ 1111?actful, scholarly and creative activities, all of which empower students for fulfilling 
careers ~nd meanmgful lives, while contnbutmg to the social and economic vitality of the region. The University is vital to the 
econorruc and social progress of this region and the Commonwealth. 

Financial Highlights 

T~e_CTniversity's financial position remains relatively strong at June 30, 2014. The University's total net position decreased by $1.2 
m1lhon, or 0.4 percent, for the year. An increase in nonrecurring reserves and positive auxiliary enterprise operating results 
contributed to a $3.3 million increase in unrestricted net position. Restricted expendable net position increased by $0.8 million for 
the year. These increases were offset by a $5.3 million decrease in net invested in capital assets net position. 

The University 's operating revenues increased by $0.2 million for the year with a combined increase of$2.0 million in auxiliary 
enterprises, sales and services of educational activities, operating grants and contracts and other operating revenues. This increase 
was partially offset by a $ 1.8 million decrease in net tuition and fees revenues. Net nonoperating revenues increased by $1.8 million 
for the year primarily due to a $1.2 mi ll ion increase in federal and state financial aid programs and a $0.9 million increase in 
investment income which was driven by excellent endowment returns for the year. Operating expenses declined by $1 .2 million for 
the year. 

The University's state-funded endowments totaled $ 12.9 million and $1 1.3 million as ofJune 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
These funds, along with the private endowed gifts donated to benefit the University, are managed by Northern Kentucky University 
Foundation, Inc. (Foundation). The endowment funds managed by the Foundation, including the University's endowment funds, 
totaled $95. 1 million and $82.7 million at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. For the five-year period ended June 30, 2014, the 
endowment funds managed by the Foundation have grown from $49.2 million to $95.1 million as a result of excellent investment 
returns and the receipt of several major endowment gifts. 

Using the Financial Statements 

The University's financial report includes three financial statements: the statements of net position; the statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position and the statements of cash flows. These financial statements and accompanying footnotes are 
prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) principles, which establish standards for external 
financial reporting for public colleges and universities and require that financial statements be presented on a consolidated basis to 
focus on the University as a whole. 

The University is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The financial statements of the University include the 
University and its blended component unit, the Northern Kentucky University Research Foundation, Inc. (Research Foundation). 
Financial statements for the University's discretely presented component unit, Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc., have 
also been included in accordance with GASB pronouncements. Financial statements presented for the Foundation consist of the 
statements of financial position and the statements ofactivities. These statements are prepared in accordance with Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements. 

Statement of Net Position 

The statement ofnet position reflects the financial position of the University as of June 30, 2014, with comparative information as of 
June 30, 2013, and includes all assets, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, liabilities and net position. It is prepared under 
the accrual basis ofaccounting, whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the service is provided and expenses and 
liabilities are recognized when others provide the service, regardless of when cash is exchanged. Net position, consisting ofthe net 
amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, is one indicator of the current 
financial condition of the University. Assets and liabilities are generally measured using current values. A major exception is capital 
assets, which are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. 
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A summary of the University's net financial position at June 30, 2014, 2013 and 201 2 follows: 

Co11de11setl Statements of Net Position (ill tlzousands) 

2014 2013 2012 
ASSEIS 

Current assets $ 108,879 $ 95,629 $ 98,168 
Cap ital assets , net 3 15,41 I 313,257 321,434 
Noncurren t assets 71,455 42,927 44,958 

Total assets 495,745 451,813 464,560 

DEFERRED OUIFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,079 1, 167 1, 149 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities 36,205 30,025 31,569 
Noncu rrent Liabilities 149,003 109,840 I 16,583 

Total Liab ilities 185,208 139,865 148,152 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,522 1,785 2,049 

NEr POSITION 

Inves ted in capital assets , ne t ofrelated debt 212,906 218,241 224,696 
Restricted 

Nonexpendable 7,616 7,616 7,616 
Expendable 5,631 4,865 8,380 

Unres tricted 83,941 80,608 74,816 
Total net po s ition $ 3 10,094 $ 311,330 $ 3 15,508 

The statement of net position at June 30, 2014 reflects the University's relatively strong fmancial position. 

Assets 

The University's assets increased by $43.9 mi llion, or 9.7 percent, for the year ended June 30, 2014 and now total $495.7 million. A 
$13.2 mill ion increase in current assets for the year ended June 30, 2014 combined with a $2.5 million decrease for the year ended 
June 30, 2013, resulted in a combined increase of$10.7 million, or 10.9 percent, s ince June 30, 2012. Noncurrent assets, excluding 
net capital assets, grew by $26.5 million since 2012 as a result of an increase in unspent bond proceeds related to several major 
building projects that are currently under construction. This increase was partially offset by a decline in the deposits held in a stream 
and wetland restoration fund by the Research Foundation pursuant to a memorandum of agreement with a federal agency. 

Net capital assets grew by $2.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2014 and decreased by $8.2 mill ion the prior year, resulting in a 
combined decrease of$6.0 mill ion, or 1.9 percent, since June 30, 2012. This decline is the net result of a $33.2 million increase in 
capitalized construction project costs, land improvements, equipment and other capital assets, less $39.2 mill ion in depreciation. Net 
capital assets totaled $315.4 mill ion, or 63 .6 percent of total assets as ofJune 30, 2014. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows ofresources totaled $ 1.1 million and $1.2 million as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The deferred 
outflows, which resulted from a loss on a bond refunding, are being amortized over the life ofthe bond issue. 

Liabilities 

At June 30, 2014, the University's liabilities totaled $185.2 million compared to the previous year's $ 139.9 million. This $45.3 
mill ion increase in liabi lities resulted primarily from a $46.7 million increase in current and noncurrent long-term liabilities, 
including a $46.8 mill ion increase in outstanding bonds, notes and capital leases that resulted from the issuance ofbonds for the 
health center expansion and student housing projects. Bonds, notes and capital leases payable, net of discounts and premiums, 
represented $141.3 mill ion, or 76.3 percent, of total liabili ties at June 30, 2014. 

The University's total liabi lities increased by $37. I mill ion, or 25.0 percent, from June 30, 2012 to June 30, 2014. Current liabilities 
increased by $4.7 mi llion. Noncurrent liabilities increased by $32.4 mi llion, due to a $40.7 million increase in bonds, notes and 
capital leases payable and a $6. 1 million decrease in agency deposits held by the Research Foundation. 
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Deferred Inflows of Resources 

~eferred in~ows ofresources total~d $ I .5 mill_ion and $1.8 million as ofJune 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The deferred 
mflo"".s, which resul_ted from a service concession agreement between the University and a food service provider, are being 
amortized over the life of the service agreement. 

Net Position 

The following chart illustrates the University's net posit ion for fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014 (presented in millions). 
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□ Restricted Expendable □ Unrestricted 

Net position represents the difference between the University's total of assets and deferred outflows of resources and the total of 
liabil ities and deferred inflows of resources. The University's net position totaled $310.1 mi ll ion and $311.3 million at June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively. Net invested in capital assets totaled $212.9 million, or 68.7 percent, of total net position. The 
University's restricted and unrestricted net position represented 4.3 percent and 27.1 percent of total net position, respectively. Total 
net position decreased by $1.2 million, or 0.4 percent, for the year. Net invested in capital assets decreased $5.3 million for the year 
resulting from depreciation expenses in excess of increases in new capital assets, net of debt. Restricted expendable resources 
increased by $0.8 million. Positive operating results contributed to a $3.3 million increase in unrestricted net position for the year. 

The University's total net position decreased by $5.4 mill ion, or 1.7 percent, from June 30, 2012 to June 30, 2014. Depreciation 
expenses for the two year period exceeded additions to capital assets, net ofrelated debt, resulting in an $11.8 million decrease in 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt. The University's restricted expendable net position decreased by $2.7 million while its 
unrestricted net position increased by $9.1 million from June 30, 2012 to June 30, 2014. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the revenues earned and expenses incurred during the year. 
Activities are reported as either operating or nonoperating. GASB requires state appropriations and nonexchange grants and 
contracts to be classified as nonoperating revenues. Accordingly, the University will generate an operating loss prior to the addition 

of non operating revenues. 
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This statement is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the service is 
provided and expenses and liabi lities are recognized when others provide the service, regardless of when cash is exchanged. 
The utilization of long-lived assets, referred to as capital assets, is reflected in the financial statements as depreciation, which 
amortizes the cost ofan asset over its expected useful life. A summarized comparison of the University's revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position for years ended June 30, 2014, June 30, 2013, and June 30, 2012 follows: 

Co11de11sed S tatements ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in thousands) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Student tu ition and fees, net 
Grants and contracts 
Sales and services ofeducational departments 
Auxiliary enterprises 
Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Educational and general 
Depreciation 
Auxiliary enterprises (including depreciation) 
Other expenses 

Total operating expenses 
Net loss from operations 

NONOPERATINGREVENUES (EXPENSES) 
State appropriations 
Gifts , grants and contracts 
Inves tment income 
Interest on capital asset--related debt 
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Net nonoperating revenues 
Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, 
gains or losses 

Capital appropriations 
Capital grants and gifts 

Total other revenues 

Increase (decrease) in net position 
Net position-beginning ofyear 

Net pos ition-end ofyear 

2014 2013 2012 

$ 107,716 $ 109,562 $ 105,171 
10,253 9,968 9,497 
5,470 4,751 4,407 

14,177 13,4 15 13,035 
7,423 7,173 7,783 

145,039 144,869 139,893 

194,678 195,013 189,508 
16,475 17,11 6 17,179 
8,734 9,022 8,231 

IOI 44 64 
219,988 221,195 214,982 
(74,949) (76,326) (75,089) 

46,835 46,835 49,744 
28,179 27,150 27,567 

2,406 1,542 226 
(3,38 I) (3,749) (4, 106) 

(607) (108) (16) 
73,432 71,670 73,415 

( 1,51 7) (4,656) (1,674) 
(80) 

281 558 3,862 
281 478 3,862 

(1,236) (4,178) 2,188 
311,330 315,508 313,320 

$ 310,094 $ 311,330 $ 315,508 
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Operating and Nonoperating Revenues 

The followin~ ~~art illustrates the University's revenues by source {both operating and nonoperating), which were used to fund its 
operatmg act1v1ues for fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014. Significant recurring sources of revenues, including state appropriations 
and n~nexchange ~ants and contracts, ~re consi~ered nonoperating revenues as defined by GASB. These revenues support 
operatmg expenses, therefore, they are mcluded 111 the graph of revenues by source (presented in millions). 
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The University's operating and non operating revenues totaled $222.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2014, an increase of $2.1 
mill ion compared to 2013. Operating revenues totaled $145.0 million, or 65.2 percent of revenues, while nonoperating revenues 
grew to $77.5 million, or 34.8 percent of revenues, for the year. The most s ignificant sources of revenue for the University are net 
student tuition and fees ( 48.4 percent) and state appropriations (21.0 percent). 

Operating revenues increased by $0.2 million for the year with increases in auxiliary enterprises ($0.8 million), sales and services of 
educational activities ($0.7 mill ion), operating grants and contracts ($0.3 million) and other operating revenues ($0.2 million). 
These increases were partially offset by a decrease in net tuition and fees revenues ($1.8 million). 

Nonoperating revenues grew by $1.9 million for the year. The University's state appropriations were unchanged at $46.8 million for 
fiscal years 2014 and 2013. T he University's state nonoperating grant revenues increased by $0.9 million for the year due to a $0.9 
million increase in state financial aid program revenues, including increases in need-based aid ($0.5 million) and merit scholarships 
($0.2 mill ion). The University's federal nonoperating grant revenues increased by $0.2 million for the year due to a $0.3 million 
increase in federal financial aid program revenues. Increased endowment investment earnings resulted in a $0.9 million increase in 

investment income for the year. 

A $5.1 million, or 3.6 percent, increase in operating revenues since 2012 was driven by increases in net tuition ($2.5 mi llion), 
auxiliary enterprises ($1 .1 mi llion) and sales and services of educational activities {$1 .I million). The growth in net tuition resulted 
from average tuition rate increases of2.3 percent and 4.6 percent for fiscal years 2014 and 2013, respectively. The University's 
nonoperating revenues declined by $0.1 million since June 30, 2012 as a result ofa $2.9 million decline in state appropriations and 
an offsetting increase in investment income ($2.2 million) and nonoperating grant revenues ($0.6 million), including a $0.9 million 
increase in state financial aid programs. 

8 



Operating and Nonoperating Expenses 

The following chart illustrates the Universi ty's expenses by function (both operating and nonoperating) for fiscal years 2012 2013 
and 2014 (presented in millions). ' 
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Operating and nonoperating expenses decreased by $1. 1 million, or 0.5 percent, to a total of$224.0 million for the year ended June 
30, 2014. As depicted in the chart above, the majority of the University's funds are expended directly for the primary mission of the 
University - instruction $77.2 million (34.5 percent), and academic support, libraries, public service and research $38.0 million 

( 17 .0 percent). 

Instruction expenses increased by $0.8 million, or 1.0%, for the year ended June 30, 2014 primarily due to an increase in faculty and 
staff salaries and benefits. Increases in public service expenses funded by grants such as the GEAR UP Kentucky grant and by 
revenue supplemented operations, such as the Center for Environmental Restoration and the Center for Economic Analysis and 
Development, contributed to a $0.9 million growth in public service expenses. A reduction in administrative expenses related to the 
Chase College of Law contributed to the $1.3 million decline in academic support expenses for the year. Student services expenses 
declined by $3.0 million primarily due to a decline in the nonrecurring, noncapital expenses incurred in 2013 related to the Student 
Success Center construction project. Student aid expenses increased by $0.6 million for 2014 due, in part, to an increase in state 
financial aid program expenses and an increase in institutional scholarship expenses. Auxiliary enterprises expenses declined by 
$0.3 million as a result of a decline in maintenance expenses related to a parking services project. 

Instruction, research, public service, academic support and student services expenses grew by $4.1 million, or 3.0%, since 2012 
whi le institutional support, operation and maintenance of plant and interest expense on capital asset-related debt increased by only 
$0.9 million, or 1.9%, since 2012. The significant increase in primary mission expenses was achieved by investing new resources 
and reallocating savings from cost containment efforts. The modest increase in institutional support and operation and maintenance 
of plant expenses reflects the University's continued effort to contain costs. Energy management initiatives have resulted in no 
increase in total utility costs since 2010 even though new facilities, such as Griffin Hall, have opened since 2010. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Another important factor to consider when evaluating financial viabil ity is the University's ability to meet financial obligations as 
they become due. The statement of cash flows presents information related to cash inflows and outflows, summarized by operating, 
noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities. 
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Condensed Statements ofCash Flows (in tlto11sa11ds) 
2014 2013 2012 

Net cash provided (used) by: 

Operating activ ities $ (52,042) $ (60,090) $ (56,704) 
Noncapital financing activities 68,876 73,642 89,895 
Capital and related financing activities 22,877 (20,600) (4,038) 
Investing activities 2,812 474 1,112 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 42,523 (6,574) 30,265 

Cash and cash equivalents, begi1ming ofyear I 10,857 117,431 87,166 
Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyear $ 153,380 $ 110,857 $ 117,431 

The University's cash and cash equivalents increased $42.5 million in 2014 and decreased $6.6 million in 2013. Major sources of 
funds generated by operating activities in 2014 included student tuition and fees ($106.0 million), grants and contracts ($10.2 
million) a~d _auxiliary enterprises ($14.0 million). The largest cash payments for operating activities were made to employees 
($143.9 m1lhon) and to vendors and contractors ($50.8 million). Net cash provided by operating activities increased by $8.0 million 
for the year primarily due to a $9.0 million decrease in payments to suppliers and an increase in auxiliary enterprise and sales and 
services of educational departments receipts ($2.1 mi llion). These cash increases were partially offset by $2.3 million decline in 
tuition and fees receipts and a $1.7 million increase in payments for salary and benefits. 

A net decrease in agency deposits held by the Research Foundation on behalfof a federal agency resulted in a net decrease of $4.8 
million in net cash provided by noncapita l financing activities. Cash provided by capital and related financing activities totaled 
$22.9 million for 2014. Purchases of capital assets totaling $21.4 million were primarily funded by $52.0 million in bond proceeds 
issued in 2014 to finance an expansion of the campus recreation/health center and a student housing project. 

The University's cash receipts from operating activities increased by $3.6 million, or 2.6 percent, from 2012 to 2014 while cash 
disbursements for operating activities decreased by$1.0 million, or 0.5 percent, for the period. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation, increased by $2.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2014. Additions to capital 
assets, net of disposals, during the year totaled $21.4 million, including a renovation of the University's north plaza, a new 
intramural field, and construction in progress related to the renovation of a student dining facility, a student housing facility and the 
expansion of the University's campus recreation/health center. Depreciation expenses totaled $19.3 million for the year. As of June 
30, 2014, net capital assets totaled $315.4 million, or 63.7 percent of total assets. 

The University's net capital assets decreased by $6.0 million from June 30, 2012 to June 30, 2014. This decline is the net result of a 
$33.2 million increase in capitalized construction project costs, land improvements, equipment and other capital assets, less $39.2 
million in depreciation. In recent years, the University's main campus has undergone a dramatic transformation with the addition of 
Griffin Hall , The Bank of Kentucky Center, the James C. and Rachel M. Votruba Student Union, a soccer complex, parking facilities 

and numerous campus beautification projects. 

The expansion and transformation of the main campus continues. At June 30, 2014, the University had several major projects in 
progress, including the expansion and renovation of a student campus recreation/health facility, the renovation of a new student 
housing facility, and the design of a new health innovations center. All of these projects will significantly enhance the University's 
capacity to serve its students and the community. 

Debt 

The following is a summary of the University's outstanding debt summarized by revenue pledge as of June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 

(in thousands): 
2014 2013 2012 

$ 134,923 $ 86,890 $ 84,304 
7,028 

General Receipts Bonds, net ofdiscounts and premiums 
Consolidated Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds, net ofdiscounts 
Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds 1,310 1,475 1,635 

Capital Lease - Residential Suites 
Notes Payable and municipal lease obligations 5,1 IO 6,218 7,137 

$ 141,343 $ 94,583 $ 100,604 
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The Univers~~ !ssued General ~eceipts Bonds in 2014 to finance the expansion and renovation of a campus recreation/health center 
and the ~cqu1s1t1on an~ renovation of a new student housing facility. This bond issue generated $52 million in bond proceeds for the 
two proJects ~nd contnbuted to the $46.8 million, or 49.4 percent, net increase in outstanding debt for the year ended June 30, 2014. 
The debt service for the 2014 General Receipts Bonds will be funded by student fees. 

A strong debt rating is an important indicator of the University 's financial health. The University's current bond ratinos assioned by 
0 

Moody's investors Service (Al-stable) and Standard and Poor' s (A) to the University's General Receipts bonds reflec~ the 
University's solid financial position. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS IMPACTING FUTURE PERIODS 

During fiscal year 2013-14 the Univers ity campus community engaged in a comprehensive strategic planning process. Faculty, 
staff, students, community members and the Board of Regents all made significant contributions to the development of the 
University's 2013-18 Strategic Plan, Fuel the Flame. This plan will guide the University for the next five years toward the 50th 

anniversary of the founding of the University in 2018. 

The University's Board of Regents approved a 4.7 percent increase in undergraduate resident tuition rates for fiscal year 2015. In 
addition to this modest increase in tuition, student fees that will support the debt service and operating expenses related to the 
renovation and expansion of the A. D. Albright Health Center are scheduled to increase by $4 per creilit hour in fiscal year 2015. 
The University issued $52.2 million in General Receipts Bonds to finance this project and the acquisition and renovation of a student 
housing facility that will be supported by student fees. 

The Commonwealth of Kentucky approved a $97.0 million appropriation in the 2014-16 biennium to the University to fu nd the 
construction ofa new state-of-the-art health innovations center. The center will support an integrated portfolio of programs to 
prepare healthcare professionals and to provide solutions to the population health and wellness challenges of the region and the 
Commonwealth. 

Although the economy continues to show s igns of improvement, the Commonwealth and the University still face budget challenges, 
including federal program funding reductions, and budgetary pressures related to the Medicaid program and the state pension 
systems. The 2014-16 biennial budget passed by the General Assembly reflects a $48.6 mill ion general state appropriation for the 
University for fiscal year 2014-15. 

Beginning in fiscal year 2014-15, GASB Statement No. 68 requires governmental employers participating in a cost-sharing defined 
benefit pension plan to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liabil ity for the first time. As a participating 
employer in the Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS), the University will be required to report a net pension liability, 
pension expense and pension-related assets and liabi lities based on its proportionate share of the collective amounts for all 
governmental entities in the KERS plan. The Commonwealth continues to implement reforms to address the large KERS unfunded 
liability by restructuring future employee benefits to ensure a sustainable pension system. As part of these reforms, the University 
will be required to fund the required actuarial contribution of 38.77% in 2014-15 for all of its employees that participate in KERS. 

The University's state-funded endowments totaled $ 12.9 million and $ 11.3 million as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
These funds, along with the private endowed gifts donated to benefit the University, are managed by Northern Kentucky University 
Foundation, Inc. (Foundation). The endowment funds managed by the Foundation, including the University's endowment funds, 
totaled $95.1 million and $82.7 million at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. For the five-year period ended June 30, 2014, the 
endowment funds managed by the Foundation have grown from $49.2 million to $95.1 mill ion as a result of excellent investment 
returns and the receipt ofseveral major endowment gifts. The continued growth in funds provided through endowments, gifts, and 
other sources of revenues will be essential as the University strives to meet the needs of our students, despite declining state and 

federal funding. 

Although the Commonwealth and the Univers ity will continue to face economic uncertainties and other challenges, management 
believes the University is well positioned to achieve its strategic priorities in partnership with the Commonwealth, the Council on 
Postsecondary Education and the region. The University is continuing its efforts to diversify revenue sources, contain costs and 
redirect resources to core mission priorities. The University has made great strides in its effort to develop the capacity to fully 
support the region. The region's economic growth depends heavily on the University's capacity to support that growth in a variety of 

ways. 
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Northern Kentucky Uni\e rs ity and Affiliate 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth ofKentucky 

Cons olidated Statements of Net Pos ition 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 

(in tlzousand;) 

As r estated 
2014 2013 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equ ivalents $ 96,442 $ 82,910 
Notes, loans and accounts receivable, net 10,307 10,386 
Other current assets 2,130 2,333 

Total current assets 108,879 95,629 

Noncurrent Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 56,938 27,947 
Investments 12,87 1 13,277 
Notes, loans and accounts receivable, net 1,561 1,660 
Capital assets, net 315,41 1 313,257 
Other noncurrent assets 85 43 
Tota l noncurrent assets 386,866 356,184 
Total assets 495,745 451 ,813 

DEFERRED OUfFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Loss on refunding 1,079 1,167 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 21,980 17,310 

Unearned revenue 6,073 6,742 

Long-term liabilities-current port ion 8,152 5,973 

Total current liabilities 36,205 30,025 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Deposits 12,083 17,549 

Unearned revenue 574 471 

Long-term liabilities 136,346 91 ,820 

Total noncurrent liabilities 149,003 109,840 

Total liabilities 185,208 139,865 

DEFERRED INFLOWS O F RESOURCES 
Service concession arrangement revenue applicable to future years 1,522 1,785 

NEf POSITION 
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt 212,906 218,241 

Restricted 
Nonexpendable 
Expendable 

7,616 
5,631 

7,616 
4,865 

Unrestricted 83,941 80,608 

Total net position, as restated $ 310,094 $ 311,330 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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Northern Kentucky Unhe1·sity Foundation, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements ofFinancial Position 

June 30, 2014 and 2013 
(in thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans, interest and accounts receivable, net 
Accrued interes t receivable 
Contributio ns receivable, net 
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 
Investments 
I.and and land improvements 
Accumulated.depreciation 

Total assets 

LIABILlTIDi AND NEf ASSEIS 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Annuities payable 
Deferred income 
Funds held in trus t for Northern Kentucky Univers ity 
Notes payable 

Total liab ilities 

NEf ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

For cu rrent operations 
Contribut ions receivable 
Amou nts functioning as endowment funds 
Invested in land and land improvements 
Total unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 
Unexpended funds received for res tricted purposes 
Contribut ions receivable 
Loan funds 
Endowment funds 

Total temporarily res tricted 
Permanently res tricted 

Contributions receivable 
Endowment funds 
Total permanently res tricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2014 2013 

$ 6,258 $ 7,480 
119 149 

3 21 
2,824 4,642 

50 42 
99,038 84,005 

548 548 
(208) (208) 

l08,632 96,679 

177 250 
32 64 

156 191 
26 26 

12,871 11 ,277 
822 1,609 

14,084 13,417 

893 694 
3 

2,212 1,939 
340 340 

3,446 2,976 

8,115 6,005 
2,618 4,409 

154 136 
38,905 28,911 
49,792 39,461 

205 230 
41,105 40,595 
41,310 40,825 
94,548 83,262 

$ 108,632 $ 96,679 

Sec accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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Northern Kentucky Unhcrsity and Affiliate 
A Component Unit of the Commonwe alth of Kentucky 

Consolidated Statements ofRe,cnues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 an d 201 3 

(in tho usands) 

OPERA TING REVENl.IDi 
Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $32,359 in 20 14 and $28, 137 in 20 13) 
Federal grants and contracts 
State and local grants and contracts 
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 
Sales and services of educat ional departments 
Auxiliary enterprises 

Housing and food service (net of scholarship allowances of $953 in 2014 and $740 in 201 3) 
Other auxiliaries 

Other op erating revenues 
T otal operating revenues 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Educational and general 

Instruction 
Research 
Public service 
Libraries 
Academic support 
Student services 
Institutional support 
Operat ion and maintenance of p lant 
Depreciation 
Student aid 

Auxiliary enterprises 
Housing and food service 
O ther auxiliaries 
Auxiliary depreciation 

Other expenses 
Total operating expenses 

Net loss from op ernt ions 

NONOPERA TING REVJlNUES (EXPENSES) 
State appropriations 
Federal grants and cont racts 
State and local grants and cont racts 
Private gills and grants 
Investment income (loss) 
Interest on capital asset-related debt 
O ther nonop erating revenues (e>--penses) 

Net nonop erating revenues 
Income before other revenues, e>--penses, gains or losses 

Capital approp riations 
Capital grants and gifts 

Total other revenues 
Increase (decrease) in net p osit ion 

NET POSITION 
Net position-beginning o f year, as restated 
Net posit ion-end of year, as restated 

2014 
As restated 

2013 

$ 107,716 
2,949 
4,846 
2,458 
5,470 

$ 109,562 
3,281 
4,251 
2,436 
4,751 

10,000 
4,177 
7,423 

145,039 

9,344 
4,071 
7,173 

144,869 

77,202 
1,53 1 

13,917 
6,052 

16,487 
22,267 
26,407 
17,038 
16,475 
13,777 

76,420 
1,453 

13,076 
6,141 

17,758 
25,256 
25,210 
16,504 
17, 11 6 
13,195 

4,572 
1,345 
2,817 

IOI 
2 19,988 
(74,949) 

4,405 
1,789 
2,828 

44 
221 ,195 
(76,326) 

46,835 
19,645 
8,532 

2 
2,406 

(3,38 1) 
(607) 

73,432 
(1,51 7) 

28 1 
281 

(1 ,236) 

46,835 
19,423 
7,663 

64 
1,542 

(3,749) 
(108) 

71,670 
(4,656) 

(80) 
558 
478 

(4, 178) 

s 
3 11 ,330 
3 10,094 s 

3 15,508 
311 ,330 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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Northern Kentuck y University Foundation, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Acti\itics 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 
(in tho11sa11ds) 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Res tricted Res tricted 
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Total 

CHANGES IN NET ASSEfS: 
Re,cnues and Gains 

Gifts, grants and bequests $ 2 $ 2,526 $ 483 $ 3,011 
Renta l inco me 119 119 
Investment income 41 1,093 1,134 
Net gain on inves tments 256 10,948 11,204 
Other revenue 223 320 543 

Total revenues and gains 641 14,887 483 16,011 
Net assets released from res trictions 4,217 (4,217) 
Total revenues and gains and other support 4,858 10,670 483 16,011 

Prog ram Expenses 
Instruction 750 750 
Research 25 25 
Public service 582 582 
Libraries 14 14 
Academic support 423 423 

Student services 210 210 
Institutional support 520 520 
Univers ity faci lities and equipment acqu is ition 219 219 

Student financial aid 1,326 1,326 

Total program expenses 4,069 4,069 

Support Expenses 
Management and general 533 533 

Fund rais ing support 123 123 

Total support expenses 656 656 

Total expenses 4,725 4,725 

Net transfers in (out) 337 (339) 2 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 470 10,331 485 11,286 

Net assets-beginning of year 
Net assets-end ofyear 

2,976 
$ 3,446 

39,461 
$ 49,792 

40,825 
$ 41,310 $ 

83,262 
94,548 

Sec accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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Northern Kentucky Unhcrsity Foundation, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Acthities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 
(in thousands) 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Total 

CHANGES IN NEf ASSErS: 
Revenues and Gains 

Gifts, grants and bequests $ 12 $ 4,378 $ 331 $ 4,721 
Rental income 119 119 
Investment income 57 1,502 1,559 
Net gains (losses) on investments 155 6,850 7,005 
Other revenue 206 286 2 494 

Total revenues and gains 549 13,016 333 13,898 
Net assets released from restrictions 4,642 (4,642) 
Total revenues and gains and other support 5,191 8,374 333 13,898 

Program Expenses 
Instruction 619 619 
Research 21 21 
Public service 700 700 
Libraries 15 15 
Academic support 541 541 
Student services 528 528 
Institutional support 566 566 
Univers ity facilit ies and equipment acquisition 210 210 

Student financial aid 1,323 1,323 

Total program expenses 4,523 4,523 

Support Expenses 
Management and general 509 509 

Fundraising support 114 114 

Rental property 7 7 

Total support expenses 630 630 

Total ex-penses 5,153 5,153 

Net trans fers in (out) 275 (287) 12 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 313 8,087 345 8,745 

Net assets-beginning ofyear 
Net assets-end ofyear 

2,663 
$ 2,976 

31 ,374 
$ 39,461 

40,480 
$ 40,825 $ 

74,517 
83,262 

Sec accompanying notes to the financial sta tements 
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Northern Kentucky University and Affil iate 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flm\s 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

(in tlio11sa11ds) 

As restated 
2014 2013 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Tuition and fees $ 106,045 s 108,344 
Grants and contracts 10,154 9,454 
Payments to suppliers (50,787) (59,824) 
Payments for salaries and benefits (143,949) (142,282) 
Loans issued to students (343) (350) 
Collection of loans to students 439 409 
Auxiliary enterprise receipts: 

Housing operations 9,917 9,021 
Other auxiliaries 4,078 3,787 

Sales and service of educational departments 5,487 4,581 
Other receipts (payments) 6,917 6,770 

Net cash used by operating activities (52,042) (60,090) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FlNANClNG ACTIVITIES 
State appropriations 46,835 46,835 
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 28,097 27,430 
Agency and loan progran1 receipts 89,782 93,572 

Agency and loan program disbursements (95,231) (94,087) 

Other nonoperating receipts (payments) (607) (108) 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 68,876 73,642 

CASHFLOWS FROMCAPITALANDRELATEDFlNANCINGACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from cap ital debt and leases 52,827 5,81 I 

Capital appropriations (80) 

Capital grants, gifts, and advances received 276 984 

Purchases of cap ital assets (21 ,446) ( 11 ,768) 

Principal paid on capital debt and leases (6,038) (11,879) 

Interest paid on cap ital debt and leases (2,742) (3,668) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities 22,877 (20,600) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 2,351 294 

Interest on investments 461 180 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2,8 12 474 

NET lNCRFAS E (DECRFAS E) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 42,523 (6,574) 

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of year 110,857 11 7,431 

Cash and cash equivalents-end of y ear $ 153,380 $ 110,857 

RFCONCILIA TION OF NEf OPERATlNG REVENUES (EXPENS ES) TO 
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net loss from operations $ (74,949) $ (76,326) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 
used by operating activities: 

Depreciation e:1.pense 19,292 19,944 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables, net 336 (1,535) 

Other assets 163 (87) 

Deferred outflows of resources 89 18 

Accounts payable 3,788 (2,327) 

Unearned revenue (562) 739 

Long-tem1 liabilities 65 (252) 

Deferred inflows of resources (264) (264) 

Net cash used by operating activities $ (52,042) $ (60,090) 

Sec accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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Northern Kentucky University and Affiliate 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Note 1 - Organization and Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies 

a. Reporting Entity 
Northern Kentucky University (the University) is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and is included in the 
general-purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth. The consolidated financial statements of the University include the 
operations of the Northern Kentucky University Research Foundation; an affiliated non-profit corporation. In accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, condensed financial information for the Northern Kentucky 
University Research Foundation is provided in note 12. 

The Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization supporting the 
University. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising organization to supplement the resources that are available to the 
University in support of its programs. The Foundation's Board of Directors is self-perpetuating and consists of graduates and 
friends of the University. Although the University does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the 
majority of resources the Foundation holds and invests are restricted to the activities of the University by the donors. Because these 
restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, the Foundation is considered a 
component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University's consolidated fmancial statements. The 
accompanying consolidated fmancial statements do not include the financial position or operation results of the Chase College 
Foundation, Inc. This foundation is a separately incorporated not-for-profit entity organized for the purpose of promoting the 
educational mission of the University's Salmon P. Chase College of Law. Although this entity benefits the University's Salmon P. 
Chase College ofLaw, it is governed by an independent Board of Directors and is not controlled by the University. 

b. Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the University have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica as prescribed by the GASB. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the University 
adopted GASB No. 62, Codification ofAcco1111ting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November30, 1989, FASB 
and A/CPA Pronouncements, which supersedes GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Proprietmy Funds 
and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, thereby eliminating the election provided in paragraph 7 
of that statement for business-type activities to apply post-November 30, 1989, FASB statements and interpretations that do not 
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. GASB No. 62 has been applied retrospectively and had no impact on the 
University's net position, changes in net position or financial reporting disclosures. 

1n accordance with GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Managements Discussion and Analysis - for Public 
Colleges and Universities (GASB 35) and subsequent standards issued by GASB, the University has elected to report as an entity 
engaged in business-type activities (BTA). BTAs are those activities that are financed in whole or part by fees charged to external 
parties for goods and services. GASB 35 establishes standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities 
and requires that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following net position categories: 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal 
balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted: 
No11expemlable - Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the 
University. 

Expendable - Net position whose use by the University is subject to externally imposed stipulations that can 
be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage 
of time. Expendable net position consists primarily of amounts for specified capital construction projects. 

• Unrestricted: Net position whose use by the University is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. 
Unrestricted net position may be designated fo r specific purposes by action of management or the Board of 
Regents or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties. 

The financial statement presentation required by GASB is intended to provide a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the 
University's assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position and cash flows. 

c. Accrual Basis 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis ofaccounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. 
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d. Notes, Loans and Accounts Receivable 
This classification consists of tuition and fee charges to students, charges for auxiliary enterprise services provided to students, 
faculty and staff, loans to students and amounts due from sponsors for reimbursement of expenses made pursuant to contracts and 
grants. Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts based upon a review of outstanding receivables, 
historical collection information and existing economic conditions. 

e. Capital Assets 
Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition or, in the case of gifts, at fair market value at date of gift. Equipment with a 
unit cost of$5,000 or more and having an estimated useful life of greater than one year is capitalized. Renovations to buildings, 
infrastructure and land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized. 
Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense is incurred. 

Depreciation ofcapital assets is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally 
40 years for land improvements, 10 -40 years for buildings and fixed equipment, 10 years for library books and 3 - 10 years for 
equipment. The University capitalizes, but does not depreciate, works of art and historical treasures that are held for exhibition, 
education, research and public service or intangible assets with an indefinite life. Indefinite life intangible assets are reviewed 
annually for impairment. If the fair value of the asset is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized for the 
difference. 

f. Inventories 
Inventories are stated at cost (first-in, first-out or average cost). 

g. Investments 
Investments are stated at fair value. 

h. Unearned Revenue 
Unearned revenue includes amounts received for tuition and fees prior to the end of the fiscal year but related to the subsequent 
accounting period. Unearned revenue also includes amounts received from grants and contracts sponsors that have not yet been 
earned. 

i. Deposits 
The University held noncurrent agency deposits of$ 12,083,000 and $17,549,000 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, the 
majority of which is a wetland restoration fund pursuant to a memorandum of agreement with a federal agency. 

j. Scholarship Allowances 
Student tuition and fee revenues and other student related revenues are reported net of scholarship allowances in the consolidated 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Scholarship allowances are the differences between the stated charge 
for services provided by the University, and the amounts that are paid by the students or third parties making payments on a 
student's behalf. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees, and other student charges, the 
University has recorded a scholarship allowance. 

k. Income Taxes 
The University is an agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statutes sections 
164.290 through 164.475. Accordingly, the University is generally exempt from federal income taxes as an organization described 
in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The University's affiliated non-profit organization has received a 
determination from the Internal Revenue Service granting exemption from federal income taxation pursuant to the provisions of 
Internal Revenue Code section 50l(c)(3). 

I. Restricted Asset Spending Policy 
The University's policy is that restrictions on assets cannot be fulfilled by the expenditure of unrestricted funds for similar purposes. 
The determination on whether restricted or unrestricted fu nds are expended for a particular purpose is made on a case-by-case basis. 
Restricted funds remain restricted until spent for the intended purpose. 

m. Operating Activities 
The University defines operating activities, as reported on the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position, as those that generally result from exchange transactions, such as payments received for providing goods and services and 
payments made for services and goods received. Nearly all of the University's expenses are from exchange transactions. Certain 
s ignificant revenues relied upon for operations, such as state appropriations, gifts, and investment income, are recorded as 
nonoperating revenues, in accordance with GASB 35. ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting a11d Financial 
Reporting/or Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance and related GASB implementation guidance, Pell Grants, College 
Access Program (CAP) Grants and Kentucky Educational Excellence Scholarship (KEES) are considered nonexchange transactions 
and are recorded as nonoperating revenues in the accompanying financial statements. 
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n. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabi lities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts ofrevenues and 
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

o. Component Unit Disclosure 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. As such, certain 
revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation 
features. 

During the years ended June 30, 2014, and 2013, the Foundation made payments on behalfof the University of$2,260,000 and 
$2,490,000, respectively. In addition, the Foundation transferred to the University $1,809,000 in 2014 and $2,033,000 in 2013 for 
restricted purposes. Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Northern Kentucky University 
Foundation, Inc. at Founder's Hall Room 120, Nunn Drive, Highland Heights, KY 41099. 

p. Reclassifications 
Certain items have been reclassified for the year ended June 30, 2013, in order to conform to classifications used for the year ended 
June 30, 2014. These reclassifications had no effect on total net position and the change in net position. 

q. Restatements 
For fiscal year 2014, the University made several prior period adjustments due to the adoption ofGASB Statement No. 65, as 
described in "New Accounting Pronouncements" below, which require the restatement of the June 30, 2013 net position for bond 
issuance costs previously being amortized. The result is a decrease in net position at July 1, 2013of$311,000. This change is in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In addition, the University discovered in 2014 that certain costs previously reported in property and equipment under the library 
category had been improperly capitalized. The result ofremoving these costs is a decrease in net position at June 30, 2013 of 
$5,857,000. 

Net pos ition, June 30, 2013, as prev ious ly reported $ 3 17,498,000 
Expense ofprev ious ly u namortized bond issuance costs (3 11 ,000) 
Library boo k adjus tme nt (5,857,000) 
Net pos ition, June 30, 2013, as restated $ 311 ,330,000 

r. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
In June 2012, the GASB approved Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Pensions. This Statement replaces the 
requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting/or Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers and Statement No. 50, 
Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar 
arrangements that meet certain criteria. Statement 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their 
long-term obligation for pension benefi ts as a liab ility for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the 
annual costs of pension benefits. 

Governmental employers participating in a cost-sharing plan will also be required to report a net pension liabi lity, pension expense 
and pension-related assets and liabil ities based on their proportionate share of the collective amounts for all governments in the plan. 
All governments participating in the defined benefit pension plan would also have the following in their note disclosures: 

Descriptions oftbe plan and benefits provided 
Significant assumptions employed in the measurement of the net pension liability 
Descriptions of benefit changes and changes in assumptions 
Assumptions related to the discount rate and impact on the total pension liability of a 1 percentage point increase and decrease 
in the discount rate 
Net pension assets and liabilities 

The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 20 I 4. The University is currently evaluating 
the effects of this statement on its fmancial statements. 

In November 20 13, the GASB approved Statement No. 71, Pension transition for contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date - an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 68. The objecti ve of the Statement is to address an issue regarding 
application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to 
amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contribut ing entity to a 
defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liabil ity. This Statement amends 
paragraph 137 ofStatement 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its 
pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability. Statement 68, as 
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amended, continues to require that beginning balances for other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions be reported at transition only if it is practical to determine all such amounts. The provisions of this Statement are 
required to be applied simultaneously with the provisions ofStatement 68. 

ln March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This statement establishes 
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, 
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, 
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This statement also provides other financial reporting guidance 
related to the impact of the financial statement elements deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows of resources, such as 
changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement 
presentations. This Statement required certain previously reported assets and liabilities to be reclassified to deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows. Net position was adjusted for bond issuance costs previously being amortized. 

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include all readily available sources of cash such as petty cash, demand deposits, certificates of deposit 
and temporary investments in marketable debt securities with original maturities less than three months. At June 30, 2014, petty 
cash funds totaled $24,815 and the carrying amount of the deposits was $153,355,000 with a corresponding total bank balance of 
$166,052,000. Ofthe bank balance, $27,692,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, or collateralized with securities held 
by the pledging bank, or bank's agents, in the University's name and $138,360,000 was held and invested by the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky. These deposits were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the Commonwealth in the 
Commonwealth's name. 

Investments 
The investments which the University may purchase are limited by the Commonwealth's law and the University's bond resolutions 
to the following (1) securities or obligations which are fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government or agencies of the U.S. Government 
as to principal and interest; (2) certificates of deposit or time deposits of banks, trust companies or national banking associations 
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation; and (3) mutual funds investing solely in U.S. securities. 

The following schedule reports the fair values of the University's investments at June 30, 20 14 and 2013 (in thousands): 

2014 2013 
Certificates o f deposit $ $ 2,000 
Restricted assets held by the Found ation 12,871 11,277 
Total Investments $ 12,871 $ 13,277 

University investments held by the Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc. are comprised of Regional University Excellence 
Trust Fund endowments. Assets held by the Foundation are invested in an investment pool managed by the Foundation. 
University assets in the Foundation investment pool at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are invested as follows: 

2014 2013 
Type of Imestmcnt: 

Fixed income fonds 13% 14% 
Equity fonds and common stock 5 1% 55% 
Hedge fonds 0% 12% 
A lte rnative investments 28% 17% 
Other 8% 2% 

Total Imcstmcnts 100% 100% 

Occasionally, the fair value of assets associated with endowments fall below the level that is required for the Foundation to retain as 
a fund of perpetual duration. Deficiencies of this nature are $0 and $5,000 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 respectively. 

See note 13 for further details of the Foundation's investment pool. 

/11/erest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. As 
stated in the University's investment policy, the bond resolution governs the investment of bond reserves. The bond resolution 
limits the investment maturities by the lesser ofthe remaining life of the bond issue or ten years. Certificates of deposit can have a 
maturity of not more than two years from the date of issue. 

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fu lfill its obligations. The 
University's investment policy requires investments to be in compliance with state statute. University investments that are managed 
by the Foundation are governed by the Foundation's investment policy. This policy contains several provisions which are intended 
to limit credit risk, including a requirement that fixed income portfolios maintain a weighted average credit rating of at least AA 
(Standard and Poor's) and have no more than 10 percent of the portfol io in below investment grade bonds. 
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Concentration ofCredit Risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude ofa government's 
investment in a single user. The University debt service reserves are invested by the bond trustees in accordance with the governing 
bond resolutions. There are no specific limits on the maximum amount of investment securities held in bond debt service reserve 
funds that may be invested in one issuer. However, such investments are limited to bonds or interest bearing notes of the U.S. 
government. 

Note 3 - Notes, Loans and Accounts Receivable 

Notes, loans and accounts receivable as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in thousands): 

2014 
Gross Net 

Receivable Allowance Receivable 
Student loans $ 2,488 $ (642) $ 1,846 
Student account receivables 10,427 (4,357) 6,070 
Reimbursement rece ivab le grants and contracts 1,480 1,480 
Other 3,315 (843) 2,472 

Total $ 17,710 $ (5,842) $ 11,868 

Current portion 10,307 
Noncurrent portion 1,561 

To ta l $ 11,868 

2013 
Gross Net 

Receivable A llowance Receivable 
Student loans $ 2,552 $ (596) $ 1,956 
Student account rece ivables 10,411 (4,187) 6,224 
Reimbursement receivable grants and cont racts 1,432 1,432 

Other 3,34 1 (907) 2,434 
Total $ 17,736 $ (5,690) $ 12,046 

Current portion 10,386 
Noncurrent portion 1,660 

Total $ 12,046 

Note 4 - Capital Assets, net 

Capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

As restated 
7/1/2013 6 /30/2014 
Beginni ng Fnding 

Balance Additions Reductions Balance 
Cost: 

Indefin ite life intang ible assets $ 4,622 $ $ $ 4,622 
Land 9,277 70 9,347 
Land improvements 29,520 5,224 34,744 
Buildings 392,480 3,643 410 395,713 
Equipment 66,747 1,488 1,163 67,072 
Library books 19,263 430 20 19,673 
Construction in process 3,252 10,769 14,021 

525, 161 21,624 1,593 545,192 
Accumulated Deprec iation: 

Land improvements 5,638 875 6,513 
Buildings 146,816 12,461 258 159,019 
Equipment 44,076 5, 193 1,137 48,132 
Library books 15,374 763 20 16,117 

21 1,904 19,292 1,415 229,781 
Cap ita l assets, net $ 313,257 $ 2,332 $ 178 $ 315,411 
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As restated As restated 
7/1/2012 6/30/2013 
Beginning Restated Ending 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Cost: 
Indefinite life intangible assets $ 4,622 $ $ $ 4,622 
Land 9,045 232 9,277 
Land improvements 28,459 1,061 29,520 
Buildings 385,387 7,580 487 392,480 
F.quipment 65,351 1,869 473 66,747 
Ltbraxy books I 9,154 325 216 19,263 
Construction in process 2,418 834 3,252 

514,436 11,901 1,176 525,161 
Accumulated Depreciation: 

Land improvements 4,870 768 . 5,638 

Buildings 134,591 12,633 408 146,816 
F.quipment 38,748 5,746 418 44,076 
Ltbraxy books 14,794 797 217 15,374 

193,003 19,944 1,043 211,904 
Capital assets, net $ 321,433 $ (8,043) $ 133 $ 313,257 

The estimated cost to complete construction under contract at June 30, 2014 was approximately $18,538,000. 

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the net book value of land, buildings and equipment acquired through capital leases included in the 
above schedules totaled $4,776,000 and $14,252,000 respectively, including buildings of$4,578,000 and $13,904,000, respectively. 

Note 5 -Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in thousands): 

2014 2013 
Payable to vendors and contractors $ 10,261 $ 8,007 
Accrued expenses, primarily payroll and vacation leave 7,354 6,307 
Employee withholdings and deposits payable to third parties 3,203 2,996 
Self-insured health liability 1,162 

Total $ 21,980 $ 17,310 

Note 6- Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in thousands): 

2014 2013 
Unearned summer school revenue $ 4,681 $ 5,144 
Unearned grants and contracts revenue 548 743 
Unearned auxiliaxy revenue 996 828 
Other 422 498 

Total $ 6,647 $ 7,213 

Current 6,073 6,742 

Noncurrent 574 471 

Total $ 6,647 $ 7,213 
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Note 7 - Long-term Liabilities 

The changes in long-term liabilities for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 20 13 are summarized as fo llows (in thousands): 

Balance Balance Current Noncurrent 
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 Portion Portion 

Housing and Dining Revenue Bonds $ 1,475 $ $ 165 $ 1,3 10 $ 170 $ 1,140 

General Receipts Bonds (net ofdiscounts 
and premiums) 86,890 52,177 4,144 134,923 6, 128 128,795 

Total bonds 88,365 52,177 4,309 136,233 6,298 129,935 

M unieipal lease obligations 5,955 1,553 4,402 1,577 2,825 

Notes payable 263 650 205 708 124 584 

Total notes and capital leases 6,2 18 650 1,758 5, 11 0 1,701 3,409 

Deferred compensation 522 17 83 456 83 373 

Federal portion of loan progran1s 2,0 18 59 73 2,004 2,004 

KERS-sick leave 670 25 695 70 625 

Total other liabilities 3,210 IOI 156 3, 155 153 3,002 
Total long-term Liabilities $ 97,793 $ 52,928 $ 6,223 $ 144,498 $ 8,152 $ 136,346 

Balance Balance C urrent Noncurrent 

July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 Portion Portion 

Consolidated Educational Buildings 
Revenue Bonds (net of discounts) $ 7,028 $ $ 7,028 $ $ $ 

Housing and Dining Revenue Bonds 1,635 160 1,475 165 1,310 

General Receipts Bonds (net of discounts 
and premiums) 84,304 5,166 2,580 86,890 4,062 82,828 

Total bonds 92,967 5,166 9,768 88,365 4,227 84,138 

Municipal lease obligat ions 7,0 10 445 1,500 5,955 1,553 4,402 

Capital leases 500 500 
Notes payable 127 200 64 263 42 22 1 

Total notes and cap ital leases 7,637 645 2,064 6,218 1,595 4,623 

Deferred compensation 542 20 522 84 438 

Federal portion of loan progran1s 2,087 69 2,018 2,018 

KERS-sick leave 675 3 8 670 67 603 

Total other liabilities 3,304 3 97 3,210 151 3,059 
Total long-term liabilities $ 103,908 $ 5,814 $ 11 ,929 $ 97,793 $ 5,973 $ 91,820 

a. Bonds 
The gross revenues of the Housing and Dining system operations are pledged for the retirement of the Housing and Dining System 
Revenue Bond. The $210,000 reserve requirement for the Housing and Dining issue has been fully funded as of June 30, 2014. The 
$348,000 required housing repair and replacement fund was fu lly funded as of June 30, 2014. 

The outstanding obligation as of June 30, 2014 for the Northern Kentucky University General Receipts Bonds are reported net of 
discounts totaling $846,000 and premiums of$5,059,000. General Receipts Bonds are collateralized by the operating and nonoperating 
income of the University excluding income which as a condition of the receipt is not avai lable for payment ofdebt service charges. 

On February 26, 2013, Northern Kentucky University General Receipts Bonds were issued in the amount of$4,995,000 at a net interest 
cost of 1 .40 percent. The proceeds refunded the Consol idated Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds Series L maturities on or after May 
1, 2014. The refunding reduced the University's total debt service payments over the term by $980,000, representing on economic gain 
of$832,000. Economic gain is determined by calculating the d ifference between the present value of the debt service payments on the 
old and new debt. 

On January 7, 2014, Northern Kentucky University General Receipts Bonds were issued in the amount of $47,375,000 at a net interest 
cost of 3 .96%. The proceeds were used to (i) finance the renovation and expansion of the Albright Health Center and (ii) the acquisition 
and renovation of a new residence hall. 
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The total bonds payable as of June 30 are as follows (in thousands): 

Housing and Dining System Re,enue bonds payable 
Series B, dated November I, 1980, with an interest rate of3.00%. 
Final principal payment date November 1, 2021. 

Total Hous ing and Dining System Revenue bonds payable 

General Receipts bonds payable 
Series A 2007, dated May 23, 2007, with interest rates from 4.00% 
to 4.30%. Final principal payment date September 1, 2027. 

Series A 2008, dated June 18, 2008, with interest rates from 3.00% 
to 4.38%. Final principal payment date September I, 2028. 

Series A 2010, dated June 29, 2010, with interes t rates from 2.00% 
to 3.50%. Final principal payment date September 1, 2020. 

Series B 2010, dated October 21, 2010, with interest rates from 
2.00% to 3.75%. Final principal payment date September 1, 2027. 

Series A 2011, dated August 4, 20 11 , with interest rates from2.00% 
to 4.00%. Final principal payment date September I, 2030. 

Series A 2013, dated Febmary 26, 2013, with an interest rate of 
2.00%. Final principal payment date September 1, 2022. 

Series A 2014, dated January 7, 2014, with interest rates fro m2.00% 
to 5.00%. Final princ ipal payment date September I, 2033. 

Total General Receipts bonds payable 

Plus: Net discounts and premiums 

Total bonds payable 

2014 2013 

$ 1,310 

1,310 

$ 1,475 

1,475 

37,835 39,825 

18,440 18,655 

2,595 2,990 

11 ,035 11 ,675 

8,890 9,290 

4,540 4,995 

$ 

47,375 
130,710 

4,213 

136,233 $ 

87,430 

(540) 

88,365 

Principal maturities and interest on bonds and notes payable for the next five years and in subsequent five-year periods are as follows (in 
thousands): 

Fiscal Year 
20 15 
2016 
2017 
20 18 
2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 

Subtotal 

Princieat 
$ 6,209 

6,380 
6,561 
6,816 
7,534 

38,958 
42,555 
17,715 

132,728 

Interest 
$ 5,296 

5,115 
4,919 
4,702 
4,443 

17,631 
8,636 
2,071 

52,813 

Total 
$ 11 ,505 

11,495 
11,480 
11,518 
11,977 
56,589 
51,191 
19,786 

185,541 

Plus: Net discounts and premiums 
Total 

4,213 
$ 136,941 $ 52,813 

4,213 
$ 189,754 
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b. Capital and Municipal Leases 

Capital and municipal lease obl igations as of.June 30 are as follows (in thousands): 

2014 2013 
Municipal leases payable 
Energy Management lease, dated October 22, 2004, with an interes t 
rate of3.76%. Final payment date September 22, 2016. $ 1,074 $ 1,523 

Equipment leases, dating from June 30, 2006- October I, 2009, 
with interest rates ranging from 1.46-4.65%. Final payment dates 
from June 30, 2014 to December 3, 2016. 281 · 401 

Facility improvement leases, dating from June 30 2006 - June 26 
2012, with interest rates ranging from l.58-4.65%: Final paymen~ 
dates from July 22, 2013 to June 26, 2017. 3,047 4,031 

Total Municipal leases payable $ 4,402 $ 5,955 

Capital and municipal future minimum lease payments by year as of June 30 are as follows (in thousands): 

Present Value of 
Future Minimum Interest 

Fiscal Year Lease Payments Portion Total 
2015 $ 1,577 $ 77 $ 1,654 
2016 1,612 4 1 1,653 
2017 1,213 10 1,223 

Total $ 4.402 $ 128 $ 4.530 

Note 8- Pension Plans and Accrued Compensated Absences 

Employees ofthe University are covered by one of two pension plans: 

a. Defined Contribution Plan 
A Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association - College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA CREF) sponsored plan, adopted by the 
Board ofRegents in July I 970, is available upon completion of ninety days of service, to all regular full-time members of the 
faculty, administrative officers and others who have educational related duties. The TIAA CREF retirement plan is a defined 
contribution, money purchase retirement plan. The employees contribute 5 percent of their base salary to the plan, and the University 
contributes 10 percent. All payments are vested immediately and the contracts with the providers are owned by the individual 
employees. The employee is entitled to various payment options upon retirement. Benefit payments at retirement depend on the 
total contributions with interest deposited into the employee's account. Retirement benefits can begin upon retirement or termination 
of employment with the University. Covered payroll totaled $45,961,000 and $44,190,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 
2013, respectively. Expenditures for the University's portion amounted to $4,596,000 and $4,419,000 for the years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively. 

b. Defined Benefit Plan 
Plan Description - All regular employees not participating in the above plan are required to participate in the Kentucky Employees 
Retirement System (KERS), a cost sharing - multiple employer public employee retirement system. KERS is a defined benefit plan 
providing for retirement, disability, death benefits and health insurance. Each employee covered by KERS is entitled to a monthly 
benefit based upon their months of service multiplied by the average of 5 full fiscal years of salary (highest 5 or last 5 based on date 
of participation) upon attainment of KERS specified age ( or age and service combinations). Participants have a fully vested interest 
after the completion of 60 months of service, 12 of which are current service. KERS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Kentucky 
Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601-6124 or by calling (502) 696-8800. 

Funding Policy- Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, University 
employees were required to contribute 5 percent of their annual covered salary for retirement benefits. Employees with a 
participation date after 9/1/2008 are required to contribute an additional I percent of their covered salary for retiree healthcare 
benefits. The University was required to contribute 26.79 percent of covered payroll for non-hazardous pay and 32.21 percent for 
hazardous pay. The University's contributions to KERS for the years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $ 11 ,589,000 and 
$10,322,000, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Effective July 1, 2010 KRS 6 1.546 states "the value of any accumulated sick leave that is added to the member's service credit in 
the Kentucky Employees Retirement System on or after July I, 2010, shall be paid to the retirement system by the last participating 
Kentucky Employees Retirement System employer based upon a formula adapted by the Board." The KERS sick leave liability as 
of June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $695,000 and $670,000, respecti vely. 
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c. Deferred Compensation Plans 
The University, through parti~ipation in the Commonwealth of Kentucky plan, offers its employees two deferred compensation 
plans created m accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sections 457 and 401(k). The plans, available to all Commonwealth 
em~loyee:-, P:rmit th_em to defer a portion of their salary unti l future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees 
until termmation, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. 

All compensation deferred under Section 457, all property and rights purchased with that compensation and all income attributable 
to that compensation, property or rights belong solely to the Commonwealth and the University until paid to the employee or 
beneficiary, subject only to the claims of the Commonwealth's and University's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plan 
are equal to those ofgeneral creditors of the Commonwealth and the University in an amount equal to the fair market value ofthe 
deferred account for each participant. The market value of the University's share of the Section 457 plan assets, as ofJune 30, 2014 
and 2013 was $3,369,000 and $3,042,000, respectively. All compensation deferred under Section 40l(k) and resultant assets belong 
to the plan participants. 

d. Compensated Absences 
University employees begin to accumulate annual vacation allowance from the initial date of employment; however, no vacation is 
granted unti l three months ofcontinuous employment have been completed. The maximum accumulation of vacation leave is limited 
to the number of days that can be accumulated in twelve months, based upon length ofservice and employment classification. 
Eligible employees are paid their accumulated vacation upon termination, subject to certain limitations. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
the University had recognized an accrued vacation liability of$3,283,000 and $3,188,000, respectively. 

Note 9 - Operating Expenses By Natural Classification 

The University's operating expenses by natural classificat ion are as follows for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 (in 
thousands): 

As restated 

2014 2013 
Salaries and wages $ 108,163 $ 108,494 
Employee benefits 38,549 36,318 
Utilities 5,571 5,581 
Supp lies and other services 34,243 37,325 
Depreciation 19,292 19,944 
Student scho lars h ips and financ ial aid 14,170 13,533 

Total $ 219,988 $ 221.195 

Note 10 - Risk Management 

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; 
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by ( I) the State Fire and Tornado insurance Fund (the Fund), 
(2) Sovereign Immunity and the State Board of Claims, or (3) in the case of risks not covered by the Fund and Sovereign Immunity, 
commercial insurance, participation in insurance risk retention groups or self-insurance. 

The Fund covers losses to property from fire, wind, earthquake, flood and most other causes of loss between $500 and $500,000 per 
occurrence. Losses in excess of$500,000 are insured by commercial carriers up to $500 million per occurrence with buildings 
insured at replacement cost and contents on an actual cash value basis. As a state agency, the University is vested with Sovereign 
Immunity and is subject to the provisions of the Board of Claims Act, under which the University's liabil ity for certain negligence 
claims is limited to $200,000 for any one person or $350,000 for all persons damaged by a single act ofnegligence. Claims against 
educators' errors and omissions and wrongful acts are insured through a reciprocal risk retention group. There have been no 
significant reductions in insurance coverage from 2013 to 2014. Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage during the past 
three years. 

The University began self-insuring employee health insurance as of January I , 2014. Accrued expenses are based on the estimated 
costs ofhealth care claims based on claims fi led subsequent to year·end and an additional amount for incurred but not yet reported 
claims based on prior experience. The University purchases both specific and aggregate stop loss coverage on medical and 
prescription drug claims. The stop loss insurance limits its exposure for claims to $225,000 per individual and 125 percent of 
projected aggregate claims. 
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The health self-insurance liability as of June 30, 2014 is detailed below: 

2014 

Liability, beginning ofyear 
Claims and changes in estimates 

Claims paid 
Liability, end of year 

$ 

$ 

5,717 
(4,555) 
1, 162 

The University also self-insures certain other employee benefits, including worker's compensation and unemployment claims to the 
extent not covered by insurance. The University has recorded an estimate for asserted claims at June 30, 2014. 

Note 11 - Contingencies and Commitments 

The University is a party to various litigation and other claims in the ordinary course ofbusiness. University officials are of the 
opinion, based upon the advice of legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the 
financial position of the University. 

Note 12 -Blended Entity Condensed Financial Information 

Condensed financial information for Northern Kentucky University Research Foundation (NKURF) is provided below for the years 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands): 

l\'KURFCondcnscdStatcmcnt of Net Position 

2014 2013 
ASSETS 

Current assets $ 2,414 $ 3,008 
Noncurrent assets 11 ,730 17,282 

Total assets 14,144 20,290 

LIABlLITTES 
Current liab ilities 897 971 
Noncurrent liab il.ities 11,730 17,282 

Due to the univers ity 437 460 

Total liabilities 13,064 18,713 

NET POSITION 
Restricted expendable 11 I 81 

Unres tricted 969 1,496 
Total net position $ 1,080 $ 1,577 
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NKURFCondensedStatements ofRe,cnues , Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

2014 2013 
OPERATING REVENUES 

Grants and contracts $ 6,235 $ 5,836 
Recoveries of facilities and administrative costs 487 414 
Other operating revenues I 8 

Total operating revenues 6,723 6,258 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operating expenses 6,270 5,984 
Operating income (loss) 453 274 

NONOPERATINGREVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Non-capital transfers (to )/ from the Univers ity (991) (385) 
Gifts and grants 50 61 
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) (941) (3242 

Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains o r losses (488) (502 

Capital transfers (to)/from the Univers ity (116) 
Capital grants and gifts 107 4 

Total other revenues (9) 4 
Increase (decrease) in net pos ition (497) (462 

NET POSITION 
Net positio n-beginning ofyear 1,577 1,623 
Net pos ition-e nd ofyear $ 1,080 $ 1,577 

NKURFCondcnsedStatementof Cash Flo\\S 

2014 2013 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activ ities $ 567 $ (603) 
Net cash provided (used) by no ncapital financing activ ities (6,496) (277) 
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financ ing activities ( 13) 324 
Net cash p rov ided by (used in) investing activ ities 2,000 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash eq uivalents (3,942) (556) 
Cash and cash equivale nts-beginning o f year 16,939 17,495 
Cash and cash equivalents-end ofyear $ 12,997 $ 16,939 

Note 13 - Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc. Notes to Financial Statements 

a. Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies 

1. Scope of Statements 
The consolidated financial statements of the Northern Kentucky Foundation, Inc. include the operations of the Foundation and 
several single member limited liability companies. All material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated for 
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. 

2. Basis of Presentation 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States ofAmerica {GAAP) which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The following is a summary of the 
significant accounting policies consistently followed by the Foundation in preparation of its financial statements. 

These statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, and have been prepared to focus on the Foundation as a whole 
and to present transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. This has been accomplished by 
classification of fund balances and transactions into three classes of net assets - permanently restricted, temporarily restricted and 
unrestricted net assets. 
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Net assets and changes therein are classified as follows: 

• Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by 
the Foundation. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the Foundation to use the returns on the related investments over 
time for general or specific purposes. 

• Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met by actions of the 
Foundation and/or the passage of time. Temporarily restricted net assets are generally established in support of colleges or 
departments of the University, often for specific purposes such as faculty support, scholarships and fellowships, library 
acquisitions, equipment or bui lding projects and other specific purposes. 

• Unrestricted net assets - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use ofthe related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. 
Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are 
reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. 
Expirations of temporary restrictions on net assets are reported as reclassifications between the appl icable classes ofnet assets. 

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received. Conditional promises to 
give are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions ofassets other than cash are 
recorded at their estimated fair value. Contributions receivable are discounted at an appropriate rate commensurate with the risks 
involved. Amortization ofthe discount is recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions 
on the contributions. An allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is provided based upon management's judgment of 
such factors as prior collection history, type of contribution and nature of the fund-raising activity. · 

Income and realized net gains on long-term investments are reported as follows: 

• As increases in permanently restricted net assets - if the terms of the gift require that they be added to the principal of 
a permanent endowment fund. 

• As increases in temporarily restricted net assets - if the terms ofthe gift impose restrictions on the use ofthe income. 

• As increases in unrestricted net assets - in all other cases. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes all readily available sources of cash such as petty cash, demand deposits and temporary 
investments in marketable securities with maturities of less than three months. Cash and cash equivalents representing investments 
purchased with endowment net assets are repo1ied as investments. 

At various times throughout the year, the Foundation has cash in certain financial institutions in excess of insured limits. Included in 
the Foundation's deposits at June 30, 2013, are short term government obligation shares of$323,000. Additionally, at June 30, 2014 
and 2013, $877,000 and $2,546,000, respectively, was collateralized with securities held by the financial institution's trust 
department or agent, but not in the Foundation's name. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, balances of$3,11 2,000 and $2,095,000, 
respectively, were neither insured nor collateralized. 

4. Loans and Accounts Receivable 
Loans receivable consists primarily of loans made to students under privately funded loan programs. The advances are evidenced by 
signed promissory notes, bearing interest at varying stated interest rates, with varying due dates. Loans, accounts and other 
receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for a probable 
uncollectible allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after 
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to 
accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $121,000 and $116,000, 
respectively. 

5. Investments 
Investments in equity securities with readi ly determinable fair values and all debt securities are reported at their fair value. The 
estimated fair value of investments is based on quoted market prices, except for investments for which quoted market prices are not 
available. The alternative investments, which are not readily marketable, are carried at estimated fair values as provided by the 
investment managers. The estimated fair value of certain alternat ive investments, such as private equity interests, is based on 
valuations provided by the external investment managers adjusted for cash receipts, cash disbursements and distributions. The 
Foundation believes the carrying amount ofthese financial instruments is a reasonable estimate of fair value. Because alternative 
investments are not readily marketable, their estimated value is subject to uncertainty and therefore may differ from the value that 
would have been used had a ready market for such investments existed. Such difference could be material. 
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The Foundation invests its endowment investment portfolio and allocates the related earnings for expenditure in accordance with the 
total return concept. A distribution of endowment return that is independent of the cash yield and appreciation ( depreciation) of 
investments earned during the year is provided for program support. 

The Foundation has significant exposure to a number of risks including interest rate, market and credit risks for both marketable and 
non-marketable securities. Due to the level of risk exposure, it is possible that near-term valuation changes for investment securities 
may occur to an extent that could materially affect the amounts reported in the Foundation 's financial statements. 

All true endowment investments and long-term net assets functioning as endowments are managed in a pool, unless special 
considerations or donor stipulations require that they be held separately. 

6. Land and Land Improvements 
At June 30, 2014 and 2013, land and land improvements (in thousands) consisted of: 

2014 2013 
Type ofAsset: 

land $ 340 $ 340 
land improvements 208 208 

Total land and land imprO\cments $ 548 $ 548 

Assets acquired for Foundation use with a useful li fe greater than one year and a value of$5,000 or more are capitalized. Annual 
depreciation for land improvements is calculated on a straight-line basis, beginning in the month of acquisition based on a useful life 
of30 years. At June 30, 2013 all land improvements were fully depreciated. Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 
was approximately $5,000, and was reported as support expenses under rental property in the statement ofactivities. 

Assets purchased or constructed through the Foundation for use by Northern Kentucky University are recorded by the Foundation as 
a program expense. 

7. Net assets Released from Restrictions 
Reclassification of net assets is based upon the satisfaction of the purpose for which the net assets were restricted or the completion 
of a time stipulation. Restricted contributions and net investment returns earned are reported as temporarily restricted support and 
reclassified as unrestricted when any donor-imposed restrictions are satisfied. 

b. Notes Payable 

The Foundation borrowed $4.425 million on a promissory note collateralized by certain pledges receivable restricted by the donor to 
partially fund construction ofThe Bank of Kentucky Center, a multi-purpose athletic and special event facili ty, with equal annual 
payments of$857,000 including principal and interest at a rate of 4.3 1 percent due from August 1, 2009 through August 1, 2014. 
The remainder of the loan principal, $822,000, is to be paid by August I , 2014. 

Costs of$33,700 associated with obtaining the loan are being amortized over the 73-month term of the note. Amortization expense 
for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $5,540 and is reported as management and general expense in the financial 
statements. 

c. Unconditional and Conditional Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of estimated future 
cash flows. The discounts are computed using a ri sk free interest rate as of fi scal year-end. Amortization of the d iscount is included 
in gifts and bequests revenue. 

31 



At June 30, 2014and2013, the Foundation recognized contributions based on the following unconditional promises to give (in thousands): 

2014 2013 
Purpose: 

Endowment g iving $ 212 $ 236 

Capital purposes 1,092 2,072 

Operating programs 1,668 2,583 

Gross unconditional promises 2,972 4,891 

Less: Disco unt and a llowance 
for uncollectable accounts ( 148) (249) 

Net unconditional promises to ghe $ 2,824 $ 4,642 

Amounts due in: 
Less than one year $ 1,696 $ 2,584 

One to five years 975 1,904 

More than five years 301 403 

Total $ 2,972 $ 4,891 

The discount rates used to calculate the present value of contributions receivable at June 30, 2014 and 2013 vary from 1.2 percent to 
5.25 percent depending on when the promise was made. 

The Foundation has pledged approximately $857,000 of unconditional promises to give as collateral against a promissory note. 

Conditional promises to give are not included as support until such time as the conditions are substantially met. At June 30, 2014 
and 2013, the Foundation had received conditional promises to give of approximately $1.1 million and $1.2 million, respectively, 
consisting of the face value of life insurance policies, net of accumulated cash surrender value. 

d. Fair Value Measurements 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under generally accepted accounting principles are described as follows: 

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as: 

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; 

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 

• Other inputs that are observable for the asset or liabil ity; 

• Other inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other 
means. 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term 
ofthe asset or liability. 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The asset or liability's fa ir value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is 
significant to the fa ir value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize 
the use of unobservable inputs. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value: 

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level I of the valuation hierarchy. 
Level l investments include short term money market funds, cash and cash surrender value, certificates of deposit, fixed income 
funds and equity funds. 

Level 2 investments are based on quoted prices of securities or other property with simi lar characteristics and include hedge funds of 
funds and a remainder interest in real property subject to a life estate. 

Level 3 investments include those in which there is no active market, such as private equity, private debt, natural resources, private 
real estate and low volatility alternative investments. For such investments, the fair values are based on valuations determined by 
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the investment managers using Net Asset Values (NAV) as of their most recent statements, adjusted for cash receipts and cash 
disbursements through June 30. 

Level 3 investments also include those for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or 
estimation. Pursuant to GAAP, management has considered redemption restrictions to assess classification of fair value inputs. 
Accordingly, the Foundation has classified alternative investments that are redeemable in greater than 90 days or that are considered 
an illiquid asset, as Level 3 investments. 

There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2014. 

The following assets were measured at fair value as ofJune 30, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands): 

2014 2013 
Lc,\!l 1 

Investments $ 68,165 $ 59,714 

Lc,d 2 
Investments $ 3,586 $ 5,185 

Le\\!) 3 
lnves tments $ 27,287 $ 19,106 

The table below presents information about the changes in the fair value of assets based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 
3): 

Prh,ate Natural Private 
Equi~/Debt Resotu-ces Real Fstate Lo,'l'-Volati lity 

Inwstments: 
Beginning balance, June 30, 2012 
Additional investments 

$ 5,266 
1,397 

$ 4,218 
1,719 

$ 1,909 
348 

$ 4,647 

Capital distributions 
Fees 

(1,100) (649) 
(35) 

(93) 
(19) 

(18) 

Realized gains 
Unrealized gains 

272 
251 

257 
104 

97 
87 448 

Balance, June 30, 2013 6,086 5,614 2,329 5,077 
Additional investments 1,375 1,667 99 5,600 
Capital distributio ns 
Fees 

( 1,738) (613) 
(62) 

(610) 
(11) 

(26) 
( 10) 

Realiz.ed gains 
Unrealized gains 

544 
771 

115 
439 

50 
123 

15 
453 

Ending balance, June 30, 2014 $ 7,038 $ 7,160 $ 1,980 $ 11,109 
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e. Investments 

The market values (in thousands) of the Foundation's investments as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are categorized by type below: 

Type oflnvestment: 
Short-term money market funds 
Cash and cash s urrender value 
Certificates ofdeposit 
Fixed income funds: 
Core plus 
Global 
High yield 

E.quity funds : 
Large/M id Cap - broad 
Large/Mid Cap - growth 
Large/Mid Cap - value 
Small Cap - growth 
Small Cap - value 
International - core 
Internationa l s rna ll cap - va lue 
Emerging markets - value 
Emerging markets - s mall cap 

Quoted prices in active market 
for identical assets (level I) 

Hedge funds: 
Directiona l 
Pub lic natural resources-MLP 

Remainder interes t in real 
property and other 

Sig nificant other observable 
inputs (level 2) 

Private equity: 
Buyout 
Diversified 
Venture capita l 
Secondary 

Private debt: 
Dis tressed 
M ezzanine 

Natural resources : 
Divers ified 
Energy 

Private real es tatc: 
Secondary 
Value added 

Low-volatility: 
Absolute return 
Divers i£ied 
Diversifiying s trateg ies 

Significant unobservable 
inputs (level 3) 

2014 

$ 5 
1,796 
2,850 

7,259 
3,199 
2,11 1 

14,063 
4,969 
9,904 
1,251 
1,65 1 
8,425 
2,505 
4,428 
3,749 

68, 165 

336 
2,872 

378 

3,586 

2,070 
1,845 

671 
1,332 

693 
427 

4,034 
3,126 

1,980 

5,308 
2,795 
3,006 

27,287 

2013 

$ 2 
399 
700 

7,004 
2,978 
1,991 

14,966 
3,9 19 
7,975 
1,903 
2,054 
6,909 
1,845 
3,834 
3,235 

59,714 

4,86 1 

324 

5,185 

1,992 
1,346 

6 19 
582 

769 
778 

3,255 
2,359 

633 
1,696 

5,049 
28 

19,106 

Total investments $ 99,038 $ 84,005 
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Investment income and gains/ (losses) (in thousands) for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of: 

2014 2013 

Inte rest $ 16 $ 24 
Dividends 1,320 1,678 
Fees (202) (143) 

Total Inws tment Income $ 1,134 $ 1,559 

Realiz.ed gains 2,939 2,968 
Unrealized gains 8,265 4,037 

Total Investment Income $ 11,204 $ 7,005 

The Foundation records the cost of managing its endowment portfolio as a decrease in investment income within the appropriate net 
asset class in the Statement of Activities. Some of the Foundation's investment managers report investment transactions net of fees. 
The fees noted above are only those fees separately stated by the managers. 

The investments of the Foundation are commingled with certain investments which the Foundation holds in trust for Northern 
Kentucky University. The market value of funds held in trust for the University at June 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately 
$ 12,871,000 and $1 1,277,000 respectively. See note 13h for further explanation of the trust funds. 

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Foundation had committed $26.4 and $24.4 million, respectively, of its endowment investment 
resources to alternative investments, of which $7.3 and $8.6 million, respectively, had not yet been called by the investment 
managers. Alternative investments for which commitments have been made consist of private equity/debt, natural resources, private 
real estate and low-volatility. 

Alternative investments of the Foundation have limited marketability and the related investment agreements generally contain 
restrictive redemption provisions to the extent that the underlying investments should be considered illiquid for the duration of the 
investment through normal maturity. Early redemption of such investments would likely result in recovery of significantly less than 
the original investment amount. Foundation management believes the investment portfolio contains sufficient liquidity among other 
asset classes to make early redemption of alternative investments un likely for reasons of meeting current spending needs. 

f. Endowments 

The Foundation's endowment consists of approximately 263 individual funds establ ished for a variety of purposes. Its endowment 
includes both donor-restricted funds and funds designated by the Board ofDirectors to function as endowments (quasi­
endowments). Net assets associated with endowment funds, including quasi-endowments, are classified and reported based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The board, at their discretion, can at any time permit spending from the 
principal ofany quasi-endowed fund, provided the expenditure complies with any donor-imposed restrictions related to the fund. 

Kentucky enacted the Kentucky Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (KUPMIF A), the provisions of which 
apply to endowment funds existing on or established after enactment, with an effective date of July 15, 2010. 

An interpretation of KUPMIF A provisions by the Foundation Board of Directors requires that the historical dollar amount of a 
donor-restricted endowment fund be preserved. As a result of this requirement, the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted 
net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, and (b) the original value ofsubsequent gifts to the 
permanent endowment. In the absence of donor restrictions, the net appreciation on a donor-restricted endowment fund is 
spendable. The net appreciation ofdonor-restricted endowment funds is classified as temporari ly restricted net assets until those 
amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation. 

Under KUPMIFA, the Foundation endowment spending policy allows for prudent spending of future endowment earnings for 
accounts without accumulated earnings based upon consideration of the fo llowing factors, if applicable: 

Duration and preservation of the endowment fund 
Purpose of the institution and the endowment fund 
General economic conditions 
Possible effect of inflation or deflation 
Expected total return on investments 
Other resources of the institution 
Investment pol icy 
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The approved annual endowment spending rate is reduced by a proportion of 5 percent for each I percent the affected endowment is 
below the value of original and subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment (i.e. principal). 

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters. The Foundation has adopted investment and spending pol icies, approved by the Board of 
Directors, for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment 
while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of these endowment assets over the long-term. The Foundation's spending and 
investment policies work together to achieve this objective. The investment policy establishes an achievable return objective 
through diversification ofasset classes. The current long-term return objective is to return a rate equal to the Consumer Price index 
plus 5 percent, net of investment fees. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. 

Strategies Employedfor Achieving Objectives. To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total 
return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield 
(interest and dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocat_ion that includes fixed income investments as well as 
publicly traded equity-based investments and various alternative investment strategies to achieve its long-term rettirn objectives 
within prudent risk parameters. 

Spending Policy and How the Objectives Relate to Spending Policy. The spending policy calculates the amount of money annually 
distributed from the Foundation's various endowed funds, for grant making and administration. The current spending policy is to 
distribute an amount at least equal to 3-5 percent of a moving sixteen quarter average of the fair value of the endowment funds. 
Accordingly, over the long term, the Foundation expects its current spending policy to allow the Foundation to meet its objective to 
maintain historical dollar amount of endowment assets as well as to provide additional real growth through investment return. 

Endowment net asset composition by type of endowment (in thousands) as of June 30, 2014 is as follows: 
Total Net 

Temporarily Pennanently Endowment 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Assets 

Donor restricted endowment funds $ $ 32,791 $ 41 ,105 $ 73,896 

Quasi-endowment funds 2,212 6,114 8,326 

Total endowment fonds $ 2,212 $ 38,905 $ 4 1,105 $ 82,222 

Changes in endowment net assets (in thousands) as of June 30, 2014 are as fo llows: 

Un res tricted 
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Pennanently 
Restricted 

Total Net 
Endowment 

Assets 

Endowment ne t assets, beginning ofyear 
Contributions coUected 
lnves tmen t income 
Net investment gain 
Amounts appropriated for expenditure 
Transfer to pennanently restricted 

$ 1,939 

25 
255 

(7) 

$ 28,91 1 
16 

1,086 
10,921 
(2,029) 

$ 40,595 
508 

2 

$ 71,445 
524 

1,111 
11 ,176 
(2,036) 

2 

Endowment ne t assets, end ofyear $ 2,212 $ 38,905 $ 41,105 $ 82,222 

Endowment net asset composition by type of endowment (in thousands) as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

Unrestricted 
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Pennanently 
Restricted 

Total Net 
Endowment 

Assets 

Donor restricted endowment funds 
Quasi-endowment funds 

$ 
1,939 

$ 22,829 
6,082 

$ 40,595 $ 63,424 
8,02 1 

Total endowment funds $ 1,939 $ 28,911 $ 40,595 $ 71 ,445 
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Changes in endowment net assets (in thousands) as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Unrestricted 
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Pennanen tly 
Restricted 

Total Net 
Endowment 

Assets 

Endowment ne t assets, beginning ofyear 
Contributions collected 
Investment income 
Net investment loss 
Amounts appropriated fo r expenditure 
Inves tment loss transferred to unrestricted 
Trans fer to pennanently restricted 

$ 1,755 

34 
153 
( I I ) 

8 

$ 22,139 
22 

1,501 
6,822 

(1,565) 
(8) 

$ 40,167 
4 16 

12 

$ 64,061 
438 

1,535 
6,975 

(1,576) 

12 

Endow1uent net assets, end ofyear $ 1,939 $ 28,911 $ 40,595 $ 71,445 

Funds with Deficiencies. From time to time, the fair value ofassets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds 
may fall below the level that the donor or KUPMIF A requires the Foundat ion to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. There were 
no such deficiencies at June 30, 2014. 

g. Contingent Liabilities 
Legal counsel for the Foundation have advised that they know of no pending or threatened litigation, claims or assessments 
involving the Foundation that could have a material adverse financial effect on the Foundation. 

h. Regional University Excellence Trust Fund 
The Foundation holds certain funds, consisting of endowment matching funds received by Northern Kentucky University from the 
Commonwealth ofKentucky's Regional University Excellence Trust Fund, which were subsequently transferred to the Foundation 
for management and investment. The Foundation reports these funds and accumulated earnings as assets held in trust for Northern 
Kentucky University. Investment earnings, gains and losses and expenditures from these funds are reported as changes in the 
balance held in trust rather than as revenue and expenses ofthe Foundation. 

i. Subsequent Events 
Events occurring after June 30, 2014 have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial statements or disclosures is 
September 11, 2014, the date on which the financial statements were avai lable to be issued. 
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Northern Kentucky University and Affiliate 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Federal Pass-Through Entity Federal 

Federal Grant/ Program Title CFDA Identifying Number Expenditures 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Dired Programs• 
Student Financial Aid Cluster 

Federal Supplemental Educational 

Opportunity Grant Program 

Federal Work Study Program 

Federal Perkins Loan Program 

Federal Pell Grant Program 

Teach Grant 

Federal Direct Loan Program 

Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 

TRIO Cluster 

Student Support Services 

Educational Talent Search 

Upward Bound 

Total TRIO Cluster 

AmcriCorps National Service Trust 

r.1ss•Through Progr.1ms • 
Kentucky Office of Career & Techn ical Education 

Perk.ins Teacher Education Award• 

Field Based Training 

Kentucky Education Professional Standards Board 

CTE KTIP 2013 Training and Overs ight 

CTE KTIP 2014 

Kcntud..-y Department of Education 

KY Trainccship in Special Education 

KY Traineeship in Special Education 

KDE/Southern Regional Educatio n Bo ard 

Informatics Summer Institute 

Math Science Partnership• 

Mathematics Response to Intervention 

Mathematics Response to Intervention 

Kentucky Numeracy Project 

Kentuck-y Non-Public School Commission 

Catholic Diocese or Kentucky 

Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education 

GEAR UP KY 3.0 Yr 2 

GEAR UP KY 3.0 Yr 3 

FLIP: Using Video Podcasts for 

r-.:lathematics Instruc tion and Interventio n I EQ 

Mathematics Instructio n and Intervention IEQ 
ColJaborative for Inquiry Based Ins truction • IEQ 

Collaborative for lnquiry Based Instruction - IEQ - Year 2 

University of Kentucky Research Foundatio n 

The Supported Higher Educatio n 

Project or Kentucky 

Berea College 

Berea College KY College Coaches 2014 

National \Vriting Project Corpo ration 

National Writing Project· SEED 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

84.007 

84033 

84.038 

84.063 

84.379 

84.268 

84.042A 

84.044A 

84.047A 

NIA 

84.048 

84.048 

84.048 

84.027A 

84.027A 

84.048 

84.366B 

84.366B 

84.366D 

84.367A 

84.367A 

84.3345 

84.3345 

84.3678 

84.3678 

84.367B 

84.3678 

84.407A 

84.334A 

84.367D 

s 

PON2 540 !300003023 I 

ro2 183130001183 

PO2 1831400001790 I 

PON2 540 1300002692 I 

PON2 540 1200002882 1 

N/ A 

l'ON2 540 1300001979 I 

PON2 540 1400000169 I 

PON2 540 1400000828 I 

PON2 540 1300000577 I 

PON2 540 1300000581 I 

1'024151300000173 

P024151300000173 

P02 415 1300003320 I 

1'02 415 1400003501 I 

P024151300003311 

P02 415 1400003502 I 

UKRF 3048107n0-l l-165 

N/ A 

04-KY10-SEED2012 

247,311 

391,132 

302,654 

17,507,116 

16,864 

83,960,871 

102,425,948 

349,024 

365,ln 
325,624 

1,039,820 

58,804 

4,431 

(391) 

2,030 

1,639 

453,687 

222,440 

(560) 

83,379 

128,964 

39,985 

23,068 

29,316 

980,259 

307,153 

1,011,555 

103,594 

9,715 

35,185 

31,003 

1,498,205 

44,036 

45,563 

14,002 

106,112,707 
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Northern Kentucky University and Affiliate 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Federal G rant/Progrilm T itle 

Fcdcr,1I 

CFDA 
Pass-T hrough Entity 

Iden tifying Number 

Fcdcr,1I 

Expenditures 

RESEARCH AN D DEVELOPM ENT C LUST ER 

Direct Program s -

National Aeronautics and Space Administration 

Approaching the Cosmic Ray Knc-c 

U.S. National Science Foundation 

Th\1 Consortium: Dispersed REU Site 

RUI: Photophysics ofSmall Molcrule & Polymetric Fullerene 

Acquisition of an Isothermal Tttralion 

Calorimeter 
Acquisition of X-ray Flourcsccnce Technology 

Collaborative Research: General Chemistry 

Laboratory 
ARRA - RU(: New Supramolccular Moietcs 

REU: Marine Biodiversity 

CPATH 1: Informatics 

Project SOAR 

Project SOAR :2 
FORCE: Focus on Occupations 
NSF TUES: Noticing Numeracy NO\·v 

ARRA-PRIME 

U.S. National Institute of Health 

NlH AREA . Genetic Susceptibility 

NLH - Hydroquinone Dcriviativcs 

NCH AREA - Effects of Antipsychotic Treatment 
Acute Effects of Alcohol on Behavioral Control 

NIH AREA - Behavior & Ncuro.tnatomical Characterization 

NIH AREA - Nanotechnology 

U.S. Enviromental Protection Agency 

Water Quality and Bioasscssmcnt o( Agricultural Streams 

Pass-Through Program s -

KY Cabinet for He.1IU1 & Fomily Services 

Assessment of KY H ealth Information 

Exchange :3 - ARRA 

University of Louisville Research Foundation 

KBRfN 2013 

KBRIN20l4 

University of Kentucky Rescard, Foundation 

EPSCoR Accelerating Cloud 

Effects of Atrazinc and Metolachlor 

Influence o ( Invasive Honeysuckle 

Pennsylvania State University 

CREST: Cosmic Ray 

Pegasus Technical 

Case Studies o( Sustainable \Valer Resources 

TOTAL RESEARCH ANO DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER 

43.001 

47.049 

47.049 

47.049 

47.074 

47.076 
47.082 

47.075 
47.070 

47.076 

47.076 

47.076 
47.076 

47.0S2 

93.113 

93.859 

93.242 
93.273 

93.853 

93.853 

66.516 

93.719 PO2 721 1200005927 1 

93.859 
93.859 

ULRF09-0!09D1-05 
ULRF13-1493-07 

47.081 

15.805 
•17.08 1 

3048108525-13-168 

3048108119-14-151 
3048108525-13-164 

43.001 3588-NKURF-NASA-C42G 

66.511 NKU-13-001 

20,384 

106,066 
47,491 

3,058 

103,370 

13,419 

1,318 

38,057 
17,130 

47,401 

92,311 

140,854 

19,752 
124,535 

754,762 

121,360 

56,876 

83,869 
88,957 

10,219 

59,848 

421,129 

10,272 

115,743 

387,195 
101,913 

489,108 

4,379 

2,770 

8,977 

16,126 

7,552 

8,300 

1,843,376 
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Northern Kentucky University ,md A£fili;1te 

Schedule 0£ Expenditures o( Federal Awards 

Year ended Juno30, 2014 

Federal Pass-Through Entity Feder.ii 

Federal Grant/Program T itle CFDA Identifying Number Expcndi l u.res 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
Pass-Through Progr.1ms • 

ARRA • Grant County Public Library 

Morchc.:1d Stale Univers ity 

Broadband 

Western Kentucky Research Foundation 

Advantage Kentucky Alliance 

Advantage Kentucky Alliance Year 2 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 

Direct Programs -

Low-Income Tax Clinic 2013 

Low-Income Tax Clinic 2014 

ESL NKU Low-Income Tax Clinic• 2013 
ESL NKU low-lncome Tax Clinic -2014 

TOTAL INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 

NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMAN IT IES 

Direct Programs -

W. Frank Steely Library Special Collections & 

Archives Su stainable Preservation 

W. Frank Stooly Library Special Collections & 

Archives Security Assessment 

Pass-Through Programs -

Institute of Museum and Library Services 

Bridging the Gap LI 

TOTAL NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR HUMANIT IES 

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 

Pass-Through Programs · 

University of Kentucky Research Foundation 

Small Business Development Center 2014 

Small Business Development Jobs 

Small Business Development Center 2013 

TOTAL SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

Direct Programs -

Advanced Nurs ing Education Program 

Pass Through Programs-

Eastern Kentucky University 

Univers ity Training Consortium 

Public Child Welfare Certification Program 

KY Cabinet for Health & Family Services 

LEAP Kentucky Transitional Assistance 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT O F HEALTH AND H UMAN SERVICES 

11.557 

11.558 

11.611 

11.611 

21.008 

21.008 

21.008 

21.008 

45. 149 

45. 149 

45.313 

59037 

59.037 

59.037 

93.247 

93.658 
93.658 

93.558 

NIA 

2013·14-058-001 

5 11602-13-001 

WKURF511602-14-001 

RE-03-11-0044·11 

3048111056-14-092 

UKRF.J0.18108121 ·12-595 
3048110108·13·163 

EKU 452655·14·103 
EKU 452655-14-104 

PO2736 I 200004752 

(6) 

2,500 

59,124 

93,056 
152,180 

154,674 

39,438 
35,852 

6,584 

7,010 

88,884 

27,558 

2,2n 

29,830 

311,683 

341,513 

60, 176 
3,288 

16,256 

79,no 

103,118 

8,535 

111 ,653 

118,901 

231,271 

40 
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Northern Kentucky University and A ffiliate 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended June 30, 2014 

Federal 

Federal Grant/Program Title CFDA 

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL ANO CO MMUNITY SERVICE 

Direct Programs -

AmeriCorps VISTA 2013 94.013 

AmeriCorps VISTA 2014 94.013 

Pass-Through Programs -

Kentucky Cabinet for Health & Family Services 

Kentucky Service Corps 2013 94.006 

Federal Kentucky College Coaches 2014 94.006 

Federal Kentucky College Coaches 2013 94.006 

TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL ANO COMMUNITY SERVICE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANO URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Pass-Through Programs 

Housing Authority of Covington 

HAC/ NACU Partnersh ip 14.870 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

D irect Progams -

Norse Vio lence Prevention Project 16.525 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

U.S. NATIONAL AERONAUTICS ANO SPACE ADMINISTRATION 

Direct Program s -

STEM Education 43.008 

TOTAL U.S. NATIONAL AERONAUTICS ANO SPACE ADM INISTRATION 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Pass-Through Entity 

Identifying N umber 

Federal 

Expenditures 

3,279 

1,872 

5,151 

PO273012000067341 

PO2730!3000000393 

PO273013000000391 

20,610 

130,998 

67,456 

219,064 

224,21 5 

NIA 5,000 

5,000 

38,742 

38,742 

65,388 

65,388 

s 109,185,490 
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Northern Kentucky University 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

1. Basis of Accounting 

This schedule includes the federal awards activity of Northern Kentucky University and its affiliated corporation, 
the Northern Kentucky University Researd1 Foundation, Inc. and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133, Audits 
ofStates, Local Governments and Non-profit Organizations. TI1erefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. Catalog of Federal 
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers are presented for those programs for which such numbers were available. 
All programs are presented by federal department. 

2. Federal Student Loan Program 

Northern Kentucky University disbursed funds under the Federal Direct Loan Programs (including Stafford 
Loans, Supplemental Loans for Students, and Parents' Loans for Undergraduate Students) during the year. 

Northern Kentucky University administers the Federal Perkins Loan Program (CFDA Number 84.038). The 
outstanding loan balance at June 30, 2014 was $2,446,110. 
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Northern Kentucky University 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

3. Subrecipients 

Of the federal expend itures presented in the schedule, the University provided federal awards to the following 
subrecipients: 

Grant 
FLIP: Using Video Podcasts for Math 

and Intervention TEQ 

Acute Effects of Alcohol on Behavioral Control 

FORCE: Focus on Occupations 

Increasing the Number of STEM Educators 

TIM Consortium: Dispersed REU Site 

TIM Consortium: Dispersed REU Site 

TIM Consortium: Dispersed REU Site 

TIM Consortium: Dispersed REU Site 

TIM Consortium: Dispersed REU Site 

REU: Longterm Perspective on Marine Biodiversity 

Increasing the Number of STEM Educators 

Nll-I AREA - Genetic Susceptibility 

Increasing the Number of STEM Educators 

Collaborative for Inquiry Based Instruction - JEQ YR 2 

Increasing the Number of STEM Educators 

Collaborative for Inquiry Based Instruction - IEQ 

Norse Violence Prevention Project 

Subrecipient 

Murray State University 

University of Kentucky 

University of Cincinnati 

Thomas More College 

Trinity University 

Colby College 

Macalester College 

Grand Valley State University 

University of San Diego 

University of Alabama at Birmingham 

Eastern Kentucky University 

University of Cincinnati 

Morehead State University 

TI1omas More College 

Western Kentucky University 

TI10mas More College 

Women's Crisis Center 

Amount 

$ 35,583 

21,151 

20,130 

12,955 

11,686 

11,618 

10,488 

10,027 

9,501 

6,979 

6,821 

6,713 

5,194 

2,861 

2,003 

1,800 

___ill 

$ 126 Q73 
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DORTON 
DEAN DORTON ALLEN FORD, PLLC 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards 

Report of Independent Auditors 

Board of Regents 

Northern Kentucky University 
Highland Heights, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Northern Kentucky University (the 

University), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 

collectively comprise the University's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 

October 1, 2014. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's internal control 

over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control. Accordingly, we do not ex:press an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 

misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 

control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 

will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 

to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 

and was not designed to identify a ll deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 

significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 

control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 

identified. 

106 W. Vine Street, Suite 600 Lexington, KY 40507 859-255-2341 phone 859-255-0125 fax 
500 W. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400 Lou1svillc, KY 40202 • 502 589-6050 phone 502-581 -9016 fax dorton.com 
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Board of Regents 

Northern Ken tucky University 

Report of Independent Auditors, continued 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obta ining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial s tatements are free of material 

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 

grant agreements, noncompliance w ith w hich cou ld have a direct and mater ial effect on the determination of 

financial sta tement amounts. However, provid ing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 

objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opin ion. The resul ts of our tests d isclosed no 

insta nces of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing o f internal control and compliance and the 

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 

compliance. This report is an in tegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards in considering the en ti ty's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 

suitable for any other purpose. 

October 1, 2014 

Lexington, Kentucky 
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DORTON 
DEAN DORTON ALLEN FORD, PLLC 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Required by 0MB Circular A-133 

Report of Independent Auditors 

Board of Regents 

Northern Kentucky University 

Highland Heights, Kentucky 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Northern Kentucky University's (the University) compliance with the types of compliance 

requirements described in the 0MB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 

effect on each of the University's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The University's major 

federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of 

Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance w ith the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 

applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the University's major federal programs 

based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 

compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 

General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Those s tandards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 

tha t could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, 

on a test basis, evidence about the University's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the University's compliance. 

106 W. Vine Street, Suite 600 • Lexington, KY 40507 • 859-255-2341 phone 859-255-0125 fax 
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Board of Regents 
Northern Kentucky University 
Report of Independent Auditors, continued 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, w ith the types of compliance requirements 

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 

ended June 30, 2014. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 

compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In plan ning and performing our audit 

of compliance, we considered the University's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements 

that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 

federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 0MB Circular A-

133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Universi ty's inte rnal control over 

compliance. 

A deficienetJ in internal control over compliance exis ts when the design or operation of a control over compliance 

does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 

prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance w ith a type of compliance requirement of a fed eral program on a 

timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 

internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that mate rial noncompliance with a 

type of compliance requirement of a federal program w ill not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 

basis. A significant deficienet; in internal control over compliance is a de ficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 

internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 

than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 

charged with governance. 

Our consideration of inte rna l control over compliance was fo r the limited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify a ll deficiencies in internal control over compliance that 

might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We d id not identify any deficiencies in internal control 

over complian ce that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have 

not been identified. 
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Board of Regents 
Northern Kentucky University 

Report of Independent Auditors, continued 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 

internal control over compliance and the resu lts of that testing based on the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133. 

Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 1, 2014 
Lexington, Kentucky 
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NORTHERN KENTUCKY UNIVERSITY 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Section I- Summary of Auditors' Results (under Section .S0S(d)(l) of 0MB Circular A-133): 

Financial Statements: 

a. The type of report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified Opinion 

b. Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses: No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses: None Noted 

c. Non-c9mpliance which is material to U1e financia l statements: No 

Federal Award: 

d. Internal control over major programs: 
Material weaknesses: No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses: None noted 

e. The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified Opinion 

f. Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section .510(a) of 0MB 
Circular A-133: None noted 

g. Major programs: 
Total Student Financial Aid (consisting of): 

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program, CFDA 84.007 
Federal Work Study Program, CFDA 84.033 
Federal Perki ns Loan Program, CFDA 84.038 
Federal Pell Grant Program, CFDA 84.063 
Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education Grant, CFDA 84.379 
Federal Direct Loan Program, CFDA 84.268 

h. Dollar threshold used to d istinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000 

i. Aud itee qualified as a low-risk auditee: Yes 

Section II - Financial Statement Findi ngs (under Section .505(d)(2) of 0MB Circular A-133): 
Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Gover11111ent Audit Stnnrlnrds: None 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (under Section .505(d)(3) of 0 MB Circular A-133): 
Findings and Questioned Costs relating to Federal Awards: None 
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